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 Brief History of the Deal Test Site


The property known as the Deal Test Site is a 208 acre parcel of land in Ocean Township, Monmouth County, NJ. It is two miles inland from Deal and bound by Deal Road on the south, Whalepond Road on the east, Dow Avenue on the north, and private property to the west. 


The area was used agriculturally throughout most of the 17th, 18th, and 19th centuries. The land was originally owned by the Woolley family, but the first farmhouse on the land was erected by Henry and Charles Herbert in the mid 1850s. 



In 1823/1824, a Late Pleistocene/early Holocene mastodon was excavated from a peat bog on the south side of Poplar Brook. Fossil vertebrate remains were also found from the Tertiary marls along the Brook.
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The site was acquired by Western Electric in 1919. The company began setting up an experimental station for ship to shore radio telephony. The property transferred to Bell Laboratories in 1925. Extensive radio communications and radar experiments were carried out between 1920 and 1953. 

From a Bell Labs Bulletin dated January 22, 1953:

Others tracts were acquired in 1929.  With the goal of extending telephone service to ships at sea, engineers 
at Deal set up, in 1920, an experimental transmitter and put speech and music on the air.  Deal was, in fact, one of the first stations in the world to broadcast a musical program for entertainment.  This experimental work led, in 1921, to successful test with coastwise ships, and the following year, apparatus was installed on the transatlantic steamer, AMERICA.  Many other sig​nificant advances were born at Deal, including the development of the short wave transmitter for the first transatlantic radio-telephone service.  During WWII, a part of the Laboratories’ work on radar research and development was carried on at Deal.


The Bell Laboratory work at Deal was consolidated with the Bell Laboratory work being carried out at Holmdel in 1953. The property was sold to Jersey City businessmen George Fangmann and Walter Scott in January of that year.


U.S. Government activity at the Deal Test Site began in September with a continual series of leases ranging from one to three years.  The U.S. Army Engineers, District of New York was the leasee, however the using agency was the U.S. Army Electronics Command, headquartered at Fort Monmouth. Approximately eight miles separated the Main Post of Fort Monmouth from this Test Site.


The lease stipulated that it could be terminated by the government upon thirty days written notice to the owners.  Subsequent to 1969, the lease stipulated that the government would pay $58,000 annually for the site.
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With the government as leasee, the Deal Test Area was often in the news in the late 1950s and 1960s because of its excellent facilities and performance in monitoring satellites. It was, for a period, one of the prime tracking stations of the North Atlantic Missile Range.  When Sputnik I was launched in October 1957, the Deal area was the first government instal​lation in the United States to pick up and record the Russian signals.  An elaborate monitoring facility was set up in time to monitor Sputnik II.  Once again, Deal was the first American station to receive the signals.


Space achievements followed rapidly. All satellites, both American and Russian, were monitored and logged con​tinuously by Deal personnel, as were all missiles launched from Cape Kennedy.  The Deal Area was the communications cen​ter for COURIER, the first large capacity active communication satellite, which had been developed at Fort Monmouth.  It was also in​strumental in the TIROS I and II weather satellites.  Its space availabilities dropped off gradually as NASA and the Air Force set up their own monitoring and tracking facilities.


In compliance with Army and DoD directives to abandon excess leased real estate, ECOM terminated their lease with the site owners effective 30 June 1973.  The Deal facilities and personnel were moved to the government-owned Evans Area. 


A report made by the Electronics Command in October 1972 noted:

The site contains 9 buildings with a total gross area of 20, 382 square feet of space and five 
steel towers, each approximately 185 feet in height. There are six additional miscellaneous type buildings comprising 4,714 square feet of space, utilized for storage and a radome approximately 50 feet in diameter. There are underground power cables leading from the 
buildings into the field and a copper grid network throughout the area for grounding of 
antennas. A cyclone fence is situated around the courtyard surrounding all the buildings. 
There are also a number of miscellaneous wood poles located on the property. 


The land was deemed safe for non-military use and uncontaminated by explosives or other toxic material.
 Ocean Township and the state of New Jersey joined to purchase the land as a nature preserve in 1973. 


The site was entered into the Ocean Township Parks system in 1980. The New Jersey Historic Preservation Office determined the site to be eligible for the National Register of Historic Places in 1981; however, the site is not listed. Two structures were demolished in the 1980s; an antenna blew down in a storm. By 1999, the park maintenance offices and storage were housed in two of the historic structures. Four buildings, including the two story former Army Signal Corps administration building, were vacant. 


Today the site is known as Joe Palaia Park. 

18 May 1928 view of the white building and short wave towers nine years after construction. The three towers were used in the first ship to shore radio telephone experiments.


U.S. Army Photograph. 








1966 picture of Building 5005, Passive Sensing Technology Area


U.S. Army Photograph
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